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The committee met at 9 a.m. in room 2175, Rayburn House

Office Building, Hon. Carl D. Perkins (chairman of the committee)
presiding.

Members present: Representatives Perkins, Hawkins, Ford, Clay,
Andrews, Simon, Miller, Weiss, Kildee, Williams, Washington,
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tion; Susan Grayson, staff director, Subcommittee on Employment
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Management Relations; Paul Dwyer, counsel, Subcommittee on
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director; Electra Beahler, minority counsel for education; Jennifer
Vance, minority senior legislative associate; John Dean, minority
senior legislative associate; Richard DiEugenio, minority legisla-
tive associate; and Beth Beuhlmann, minority legislative associate.

Chairman PERKINS. The Committee on Education and Labor is
commencing hearings today on the impact of the administration's
proposed cutbacks to many key programs under our jurisdiction.

It is not often that we see the need to convene hearings at the
full committee level. Bu-sI feel strongly, and I know the other
subcommittee chairmen agree, that what is at stake here is so
important that it demands consideration by our full committee.

By now we have all heard the figures. President Reagan has
asked for drastic spending cuts in nearly all the major programs
under our committee. To cite a few examples, President Reagan
wants to slash: 56 percent from CETA; 43 percent from school
lunch and child nutrition; and 25 percent from elementary and
secondary education programs.
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The administration also wants to substantially cut student aid,
community service administration programs, and other programs
in our committee.

What the administration has not been able to tell us are the
implications behind these numbers. How will these proposed cut-
backs affect the quality of life in the Nation? What impact will
they have on the poor now living at the subsistence level, or the
middle class? What will be the costs down the road of' saving
Federal dollars today?

In short, the administration has developed a program they say
will cure our Nation's economic troubles. They are-pushing hard
for our Congress and the American people to accept that program
lock, stock, and barrel. And yet they cannot tell us what will
happen to our people if we accept this program.

Let me give just one example. Two weeks ago, Deputy Secretary
of Agriculture, Richard Lyng, testified before my subcommittee.
We asked him the number of public schools, the number of private
schools, and the number of needy students who would be adversely
affected by the administration's child nutrition cutbacks. He had
no information. We asked him about the impact of these cuts on
the health and nutrition of school children. He had no information.

I firmly believe this committee has a responsibility to find out
the answers to these and other crucial questions. The rush by the
administration and Budget Committee to get these cuts into place
creates a huge potential for poor judgment. I want to make sure
that for this committee's programs, everyone will be aware that
serious, lasting problems can result from hasty judgments.

In my opinion, the Reagan administration proposals go beyond
rational, equitable reductions in spending. We are talking about
actually dismantling worthy programs. Even if you do not count

-defense, the overall level of Federal spending proposed by Reagan
would increase by 3.3 percent between fiscal years 1981 and 1982.
Yet in our committee's programs, Reagan is asking for cuts of 25
percent, 43 percent, and 56 percent. To put it another way, child
nutrition, for example, comprises six-tenths of 1 percent of the
total Federal budget, but makes up 4.7 percent of Mr. Reagan's
cutbacks.

Today we are focusing on the long-term costs and false economics
of' the Reagan proposals. We have scheduled several panels of
witnesses, all of' whom know their programs firsthand, and who
can tell us how cuts in programs today can result in additional
costs to the Federal Government in years to Come.

Tomorrow we will examine the impact of these cuts on the poor,
and Thursday we will look at the impact of' these cuts on unem-
ployment. Next Tuesday, we will consider the effects of these cuts
on children and youth. Then on Wednesday, the effects on family
life and on Thursday the effects in a broad sense.

Mr. ERLENBORN. Mr. Chairman. I wonder if' I might make a
statement

Chairman PERKINS. Go ahead.
Mr. ERLENBORN. Before we begin today's hearings I would like to

object strongly to the procedures which have been utilized in pre-
paring for this and 5 days of similar full committee hearings which
are to follow. In the preparation for these hearings little or no
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Today we will be focusing on the impact of these proposals on
the poor and disadvantaged. We have several panels representing
people who are served by our committee's programs, as well as
Congresswoman Chisholm and other distinguished witnesses.

I notice Mrs. Chisholm is not here at the present, so I will ask
the first panel to come around, Mrs. Charlie Mae Wilson and Mr.
Arthur Pope, Mrs. Mary Sanders, Mr. Ron Schiffman, Mr. Aaron
Moore, and Mrs. Katie Ridley.

I notice, Mr. Pope, you are from Kentucky.
Mr. POPE. That's correct.
Chairman PERKINS. We are pleased to welcome you this morning.

You have some people here.
Mrs. Chisholm, come up. We will hear from you first.
Tell us how much the Reagan proposals are going to help your

district in New York.
STATEMENT OF HON. SHIRLEY CHISHOLM, A REPRESENTA-

TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK
Mrs. CHISHOLM. I intend to do that, Mr. Chairman, to the best of

my ability.
Mr. Chairman and members of this committee, it always gives

me a great pleasure to appear before my colleagues on the Educa-
tion and Labor Committee. Although I am no longer amongst its
ranks, the work of this committee remains very dear to my heart.

I wish to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the efforts you are
undertaking in this series of oversight hearings on President Rea-
gan's budget package, "A Program for Economic Recovery."

Too many of my colleagues have forgotten that the Great Society
programs were created because of the unmet needs of the poor and
disadvantaged.

Many of these needs still exist today. Your hearings reaffirm
your interest and concern for those who are the "least of these."
The caucus commends you for your efforts in this area.

Earlier this year, the CongressiQnal Black Caucus met with
President Reagan regarding the then contemplated approaches of
his economic recovery program.

At that time, we asked the President not to balance the budget
on the backs of the poor and place additional burdens on those who
already have been hardest hit by inflation and unemployment.

Upon reviewing the budget proposals outlined by the President
in his message to the Nation, the Congressional Black Caucus
concluded that the administration's economic recovery program
will have a devastating impact on the poor, the disadvantaged, the
elderly, and those with limited incomes.

The caucus has gone on record, and we reiterate today, our
fundamental disagreement with the administration's program. The
caucus has taken up the President's challenge to produce a better
economic alternative.

In the past month, we have heard a great deal of talk about the
administration's budget proposals leaving a number of programs
intact to form a social safety net" for the truly needy.

Let me say, that the Congressional Black Caucus is at a loss to
explain which Americans are defined as the truly needy. Further,
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we believe that the seven programs which constitute the social
safety net do not really address the needs of the poor.

As David Rosenbaum observed in a recent New York Times
article, "the safety net for the needy, assist not only the poor but
also many people who are not poor and some who are quite well
off."

When President Reagan announced his economic package on
February 18, before our joint session of Congress, he declared:

We will continue to fulfill the obligations that spring from our national con-
science. Those who through no fault of their own must depend on the rest of us. the
poverty-stricken. the disabled, the elderly, all those with true need. can rest assured
that the social safety net of programs they depe-nd on are exempt from any cuts.

A study conducted by the Project on Food Assistance & Poverty,
a research organization sponsored by the Field Foundation, shows
that 23 percent of the 25 million Americans with incomes below
the poverty line receive no benefits from the 7 safety net programs
that are exempt from reductions, and that 60 percent receive
either nothing or no more than a free meal for their children on
schooldays.

That 60 percent is composed largely of welfare mothers and their
children. The University of Chicago Center for the Study of Wel-
fare Policy has calculated that such families would lose $12 million
a month for each child because of cutbacks in the food stamp
program and probably much more, depending on how they are
affected by reductions in aid to families with dependent children,
medicaid, emergency fuel assistance and other programs.

The Chicago Center's study found that the working poor would
be among the hardest hit by the proposed reductions. The study
showed, for example, that a typical poor working mother in New
York with two school-age children would have her disposable
monthly income reduced by about 15 percent, from about $700 to
about $600, if the Reagan program was enacted.

Let's examine the administration's budget proposals under this
committee's jurisdiction which will impact negatively upon the
poor in America.

With respect to the block grant approach, it is the firm belief of
the caucus that Federal programs should meet certain criteria:
They should be national in scope, accountable, efficient and equita-
ble.

It is clear to us that the block grant approach violates all of
these criteria.

The administration's rationale for block granting social service
programs is clearly outlined in the February 18, budget document,'A Program for Economic Recovery."

The Administration's block grant proposal will enable States to plan and coordi-
nate their own service programs, (and) establish their own practices * *.

The caucus believes that any budget proposal which gives States
total discretion to "establish their own priorities" for social service
programs would be a disaster for the poor.

We come to that conclusion on the basis of historical patterns in
this country.

Many of the programs in the proposed block grant provide serv-
ices to targeted populations because of a national recognition of
their special needs.
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The President's block grant proposal contains no method by
which assistance will be specifically provided to these special-needs
populations.

We would urge the committee to remember that the poor would
clearly be endangered by a block grant system of social service
funding. The probability that funds will be shifted from survival
programs into programs that appeal to the middle-class voters or
local power structures is all too great. These fears are confirmed by
the history of the community development block grant program,
general revenue sharing, and by the historic vulnerability of poor
people to local pressure groups.

The Community Services Administration, CSA, formally succeed-
ed the Office of Economic Opportunity (OEO), in 1975.

CSA still administers a nationwide network of Community
Action agencies (CAA's), local community-based and community-
controlled organizations charged with the dual mission of service
delivery and advocacy for the pool'.

The Community Services Administration, in fiscal year 1980,
administers 900 CAA's and about 40 community development cor-
porations (CDC's).

A number of small, categorical grant-in-aid programs-for exam-
ple, Senior Opportunities and Services, Community Food and Nu-
trition-also are operated by CSA, with CAA's and CDC's serving
as grantees for much of this assistance.

Finally, the agency provides some training and technical assist-
ance through regional and national grantees and conducts demon-
strations and national evaluations of other Federal programs for
the low income.

President Reagan proposes to eliminate the Community Services
Administration and to place antipoverty activities into a $3.8 bil-
lion social service block grant to be run by the Department of
Health and Human Services.

At the heart of the Community Action concept is the tripartite
governing board consisting of local elected officials or their repre-
sentatives, low-income individuals elected by their community, and
representatives of business, labor, religious or other major organi-
zations in the area.

The block grant proposal offers no mechanism for the continued
involvement of a broad cross-section of the community in anti-
poverty activities.

Further, the potential conflicts under a social services block
grant, which I discussed earlier, already exist between Community
Action Agencies and local government. -

Community Action officials say that their role as advocates for
the poor often places them in an adversarial position with their
local governments.

This situation currently jeopardizes their abilities to receive
funds from these governments for service delivery. CSA, and its
predecessor, OEO, was created because State and local govern-
ments had neither the resources, the ability nor the priority inter-
est in working effectively with the poor.

Certainly, we cannot now expect that these same governments
are willing to use their social service funds to promote service
delivery for the poor.
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I would remind this committee that the social service block grant
lumps some programs together, including CSA, and reduce their
total budgets by 25 percent.

Under the plan, States could spend the block grant money in any
proportion they choose and they do not have to fund every project
in the block.

Consequently there is no guarantee that the 1.5 million elderly
poor will continue to receive SOS services or that the rural poor
will receive technical assistance for rural development programs.

Indians and migrants could also lose demonstration funds aimed
at finding new ways to lift them out of poverty. New York State
would lose $58 million in low-income energy assistance funds.

All of us would agree, I believe, that the above groups can be
called "truly needy" and yet they face a long fall through our
President's "safety net."

Activities currently funded under title VII, of the Economic Op-
portunity Act, will not be part of the social service block grant, but
they will be transferred to HUD's community support block grant.

As you can see, "block granting" is as fashionable as "jelly
beans. Under this title, Community Development Corp. have been
used to spur the creation of programs in which low-income people
can participate and improve the quality of life in this community.

In fact, the first CDC grant was made to the Bedford Stuyvesant
Restoration Corp. in my congressional district. The development of
Bedford-Stuyvesant Restoration Plaza has contribued greatly to the
revitalization of central Brooklyn. A revitalization which I believe
is possible for hundreds of other communities across this Nation.

The big question is whether CDC's, under the new formula, can
remain "responsible to residents of the area" they serve, as man-
dated by the legislation. .

As part of President Carter's urban initiative, CSA had joined
with the National Credit Union Administration to provide seed or
expansion money to some 15 to 30 community development credit
unions.

A one-time appropriation of $6 million was made in fiscal year
1980 to finance a revolving loan fund for this program, which will
provide training and technical assistance as well as capitalization
loans.

This program also would be subsumed under the HUD block
grant. ' ;ke the social service block grant, there is no certainty that
States ot local governments would spend their community support
block grant for community economic development programs.

The caucus is aware that CSA has had a number of negative
oversight reports by the House Government Operations Subcom-
mittee on Manpower and Housing.

The Chair of that subcommittee, Congressman Cardiss Collins, is
also a member of the Congressional Black Caucus. Let me assure
this committee that she supports the caucus' perspective that CSA
should be retained as a separate entity.

We are very heartened by the decision of Chairman Ike An-
drews, of this committee, to proceed with reauthorization of CSA.

The caucus believes that the reauthorization process is the forum
to evaluate CSA's performance. The poor will be better served by a
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careful review process than an arbitrary decision to "block grant"
proverty programs.

Since today's hearings cover the impact of the President's budget
on the poor, I would like to discuss some of the issues which
concern the caucus in areas which many of us may not readily
consider as affecting the poor.

CETA

I understand that tomorrow's hearing will be devoted to employ-
ment issues and I am certain that my distinguished colleague,
Congressman Gus Hawkins of California will focus on CBC con-
cerns in this area.

I believe it is important, however, to illustrate the impact CETA
cutbacks will have on many programs which service the poor.

As the committee knows, the administration proposes to elimi-
nate all federally funded public sector employment programs under
CETA titles VI and II-D. In New York City, for example, 11,500
jobs and $178 million would be lost in Federal aid in fiscal year
1982.

The city currently utilizes 8,800 CETA workers to perform serv-
ices in the Sanitation, Police and Health Departments, in the
Board of Education, and in other agencies.

Private community-based organizations employ another 2,700
CETA workers for such tasks as weatherizing homes, caring for the
elderly, and arson prevention.

For example, $1.5 million in CETA funds are used to support the
operation of Older American Act programs in New York State.

New York City may be able to retain some of its CETA workers
by transferring them to city tax levy positions.

But community organizations, which have come to rely on CETA
workers to perform a variety of services for their neighborhoods,
have no other sources of funding to sustain their current staffing
levels.

I am sure all of us are pleased that Head Start has been included
in the social "safety net" of programs. Cutbacks in CETA, however,
will damage this program. Let me tell you how.

John Busa, Acting Administrator for the Administration on Chil-
dren, Youth and Families indicated that a loss of PSE jobs would
probably cost Head Start programs nationally, $25 million.

He also admitted that the loss of these jobs could mean a reduc-
tion in the number of children served.

The facts suggest, therefore, that the social "safety net" pro-
grams will even be affected by the elimination of CETA public
service jobs. The Caucus believes that this spillover effect is only a
further example of the damaging effects of President Reagan's
budget on the poor.

CHILD NUTRITION

Certainly, food and nutrition programs are vital to the mainte-
nance of the health and well-being of Americans, particularly those
we have designated as the poor in this Nation.

Yet the administration wants to cut close to $1.8 billion out of
the approximately $4.5 billion budget for child nutrition programs,



	  

245

which include school lunch, school breakfast, and the child care
food program.

All subsidies for middle- and upper-middle-class children who
purchase school lunches would be eliminated, and subsidies for
reduced-price lunches would drop by 37 cents.

Some $400 million in cuts that are now effective for fiscal year
1981 only would become permanent. These cuts include reducing
the reimbursement rates for all school lunches by 4.5 percent,
lowering eligibility for reduced-price lunches to 185 percent of the
poverty level, and adjusting reimbursement rates for inflation
once, rather than twice, a year.

Last, schools would be required to verify 10 percent of all appli-
cations for free and reduced-price school meals.

The severity of the proposed cuts in the school lunch program
could force many schools to shut down their programs.

Thus, students who receive free lunches would be hurt, despite
Reagan's promises to protect them. And the reimbursement rates
for child care centers participating in the child care food program
would also be cut under the Reagan proposals.

By law, these rates are tied to those of the school lunch pro-
grams; when the school lunch rates are cut, so are the child-care
food rates.

The administration has also proposed eliminating all meal sup-
plements-or snacks, such as fruit or cheese-from the child-care
food programs.

EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR THE DISADVANTAGED

For years, this Nation debated the question of Federal aid to
education. The proponents of Federal aid to education took the
position that many States were actually denying education oppor-
tunity and educational equity to certain school children, and that,
therefore, the Federal Government should assume the role of pro-
tector of the educational and constitutional rights of all children in
this regard.

An important element of this protector role was the requirement
that Federal funds be used to supplement State and local financial
efforts and not supplant them.

According to Reagan's budget document, "A Program for Eco-
nomic Recovery," this requirement, along with all requirements for
State and local matching funds, would be eliminated.

The block grant supporting local education agencies would con-
sist of about 12 programs currently providing educational services
for the disadvantaged, handicapped, adults requiring basic educa-
tion, migrants, and school districts undergoing desegregation.

The State block grant would consist of about 35 programs that,
(A), provide direct educational services for handicapped, neglected,
and delinquent children, (B), improve staffing and services of State
agencies, and; (C), indirectly support improved school services in-
cluding assistance to school libraries, curriculum development, and
technical assistance.

All of these programs are the very backbone of support to poor,
educationally deprived, and handicapped children.

81-871 0 - 82 - 17
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They would be lumped together and stripped of provisions that

insure targeting, procedural safeguards, individualized programing,
parent involvement and civil rights enforcement.

State and local educational agencies would be freed from all
legislative and regulatory prescription and allowed to set their own
priorities on the amounts and manner in which programs for vul-
nerable populations of children are to be funded and implemented;
if at all.

The congressional debates on educational opportunity and educa-
tional equity eventually led to the passage by Congress of the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Public Law 89-
10). A key element in Public Law 89-10 was title I, which author-
ized a national education program for disadvantaged children, and
is the largest program included in the local education agency block
grant.

Section 101 of that law, as amended, states:
In recognition of the specific educational needs of children of

low-income families and the impact that concentrations of low-
income families have on the ability of local educational agencies to
support adequate educational programs, the Congress hereby de-
clares it to be the policy of the United States to provide financial
assistance to local educational agencies serving areas with concen-
trations of children from low-income families.

I am going to skip some and leave the rest for the record.
Chairman PERKINS You go ahead with your statement and we

will limit the questions to 5 minutes.
You are making a fine statement.
Mrs. CHISHOLM. The education block grant raises another serious

concern with members of the Congressional Black Caucus: The
potential competition for funds with other disadvantaged groups.

For example, the provisions of Public Law 94-142, the Education
for the Handicapped Act, requires that every handicapped child
must be provided with a free appropriate public education.

This legal standard means that a successful lawsuit could prob-
ably be brought against an LEA to spend 94-142 funds for the
education of handicapped children.

Without a change in law, title I children, in particular, would be
at a distinct disadvantage in the competition for block grant
moneys since there is no Federal or State law requiring that disad-
vantaged children receive "a free, appropriate public education."
Dangerous.

Although title VII, bilingual education programs, were removed
for the LEA block grant, a number of States require bilingual
education programs.

A State might choose to augment its bilingual funds from block
grant moneys in order to serve all children required to be served
under State law, further reducing the amount of funds available
for compensatory education.

The caucus does not support a weakening of legal protections for
the handicapped child or the child with limited English proficiency.

However, we view the potential competition between these chil-
dren and the disadvantaged child as harmful to public education
and to the children themselves. Consequently, we believe that this
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roblem is a further illustration that the block grant proposal is
ad public policy.
Also, the evidence on State monitoring and management of title

I programs is further reason to oppose the block grant approach.
In 1977, the Rand Corp. concluded that-

The Federal role not only can be effective in helping to meet the needs of local
districts with high concentrations of target pupils, it is a necessary ingredient in the
accountability process.

Indeed, effective implementation of Title I at the State and local levels deserves
more, rather than less, attention from the Federal Government, though such atten-
tion should be based upon a realistic understanding of State problems and condi-
tions.

Budgetary cuts of 25 percent are awesome in themselves but the
administration's proposal obliterates all categorical aid with little
or no provision for Federal oversight, nor any assurance that the
original Federal goals would be carried forward by the 50 States in
the United States.

The General Accounting Office has urged that proposals to con-
solidate Federal education programs "should be preceded by a care-
ful analysis of their impact."

The caucus feels that the administration's block grant proposal
has failed this test; therefore, we oppose the administration's plan
and the budgetary reduction of 25 percent to education programs.

Chairman PERKINS. Let me compliment you, Mrs. Chisholm. You
know the administration is claiming that these cutbacks will
reduce inflation and revive the economy.

I notice you are saying the cutbacks will hurt the poor and the
middle class.

Do you believe that these cutbacks are being shared equally by
all segments of the population?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. No; I do not believe that these cutbacks are
being shared equally by all segments of the population at all.

First of all, you have to start from a very basic premise, what are
the conditions or what are the qualifications with respect to the
individuals who would be severely hurt or severely damaged by
these cuts?

I think when you take into account the fact that we are going to
be speaking about these major cutbacks as well as tax reductions,
there are many loopholes in this entire concept that has absolutely
nothing to do with equitability across the board.

There are other mechanisms that pick up the slack for other
privileged groups in this country.

Chairman PERKINS. You feel the poor are sharing a greater
responsibility than the other segments of the economy in this
proposed cutback?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I definitely do. I think the responsibility, the
most important thing to this Nation is preservation and conserva-
tion of the resources any nation has, that is, its people, families,
and children.

From that standpoint alone, it is just incomprehensible.
Chairman PERKINS. Do you feel that carrying Reagan's proposals

down the track with all his suggestions of cutbacks is going to
succeed?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. It depends on the people of this country. It
depends on the groups that have a specific interest.
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Chairman PERKINS. I mean insofar as revitalizing the economy
and cutting inflation.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Definitely not. I just want to conclude with one
statement. Then you can question me.

I must conclude with words of one of my mentors. The late
Senator Hubert Humphrey summed up our differences in his last
speech on Capital Hill.

Hubert Humphrey said:
The moral test of government is how it treats those who are in the dawn of life,

the children; those who are in the twilight of life, the aged; and those who are in
the shadows of life, the sick, the needy and the handicapped.

Thank you for this opportunity.
Chairman PERKINS. Mr. Erlenbort.
Mr. ERLENBORN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I would like to

thank you for your testimony.
I am certain it will be helpful to this committee. It has been said

that over the past 4 years, the Carter years, we saw the greatest
tax increase in history. That is true even not accounting for the
cruelest tax of all, in action, which ran rampant during the past 4
years. It is the cruelest tax of all. Because it takes from the poor
and those on fixed incomes who have no way to protect themselves
against that sort of cruel tax that makes everything that they need
to survive, housing, food, health care, cost that much more.

It is because of that rampant inflation that President Reagan
was given the mandate last November to get the economy under
some control for the very purpose of protecting the poor, the dis-
abled, the young, the elderly.

Now, President Reagan, in his inaugural address, gave a chal-
lenge to those who would be nay-sayers to his economic recovery
program, that if you say no to this as the way to get our economy
under control, come up with an alternative.

What is your alternative, he said in his speech, to the budget
cuts and the tax adjustments that, in his opinion, and the opinion
of many will help get inflation under control.

So far before our committee, we have had the nay-sayers, but
even those who have said, yes, there must be some cuts, did not
seem to be prepared to tell us where we could best make those cuts
so it would not harm people unnecessarily.

Can you give us an alternative to the President's program?
Mrs. CHISHOLM. I really do not have the time to go into the

development that received very little attention in Washington,
D.C., that the Cgngressional Black Caucus did a great deal of work
on and put forth as an alternative.

There are many, many loopholes and there are many areas that
still could be chopped if you desire to chop them, and not have the
expense on the backs of the poor and those who are less fortunate.

For example, you talk about tax-cutting across the board, 10-
percent cut across the board, 30 percent over a period of 3 years.

That in no way affects or helps the poor or the low-, middle-
income people in this country now because they are not in that
particular bracket.

When you speak about cutting back on a lot of these lunch and
school nutrition programs and breakfast and at the same time you
still continue in the direction of giving special incentives or special



24.9

consideration for the three martini lunch, the analogy, leaves a lot
to be questioned.

Third, do you realize this country is going through tremendous
inflation and that we are escalating a fantastic financial debt, a
legacy we are going to bequeath to our children, and children's
children for generations to come.

You realize that and we realize things have to be done. But what
is interesting to me in terms of the President's overall proposal is
that just as the President is moving in the direction of eliminating
the CETA programs and cutting back on any other programs-
many of these people were unemployed and many of these people
had come off public assistance and because the administration
itself has not come forth with an alternative to putting these very
people to work, these very people are going to be going back on
unemployment rolls, so the goals of the administration might be
praiseworthy in terms of overall concept, but the mechanics and
instrumentality for making sure that those who are moving in. a
different direction are not there.

The administration has not come up with what they are going to
do with respect to all of these persons who are going to be out of
work when the CETA programs are closed down.

All of these persons who have been working in different social
agencies. There is no alternative.

There is one other thing I would like to say, Mr. Erlenborn.
You did indicate that the President received a mandate from this

country to do something about the inflation, and what have you.
I think that the record has to show that only approximately 50

percent of the American people became so disgusted with a lot of
things that only 50 percent of them went to the polls last Novem-
ber and 50 percent of these people-only about 28 or 29-I may be
off.

Mr. ERLENBORN. I wonder if I might interrupt because my 5
minutes is going to be up.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Only 28 percent voted for our President.
Mr. ERLENBORN. I know my chairman is going to cut me off in

another moment.
Mrs. CHISHOLM. Give me another minute or two.
Mr. ERLENBORN. I would like to make one further observation

before my 5 minutes is up.
Chairman PERKINS. It is.
Mr. ERLENBORN. Could I have another minute by unanimous

consent?
I was fearful of that. I thought there was a filibuster going on

there for a minute.
Mrs. CHISHOLM. You know me well enough to know Shirley Chis-

holm doesn't engage in filibusters. I don't have time for them.
Mr. ERLENBORN. I am sorry you don't have an alternative pro-

gram to submit for us, something that would repeal that most
cruel---

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I will send the Congressional Black Caucus pro-
gram to you.

Mr. ERLENBORN. Let me say I have been critical of these hearings
and the lack of true alternatives and help in finding the places
where we can cut to do the most good and the least harm.
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But let me also observe there has been a fallout from these
hearings privately. Some of these witnesses have been coming to us
on the Republican side and saying, "Look, we know it is going to
have to be cut and what it is. Here is the best way to do it to
maintain the integrity of the program."

Unfortunately, that kind of testimony is not elicited publicly. It
is not forthcoming publicly but the mere fact that people are
coming here and turning their attention to these problems does
give us quietly, in the back room, an opportunity to find out what
we ought to know.

Chairman PERKINS. Will the gentleman yield to me at that
point?

Mr. ERLENBORN. I will be happy to yield.
Chairman PERKINS. We will put not only those witnesses on but

any other witnesses who make assertions like that, and let them
present their views to clarify this entire situation.

Any time you bring those witnesses in here, we will call a special
meeting.

We don't want witnesses running around in secrecy around here,
so you get those witnesses and bring them to us and we will hear
them.

Mr. ERLENBORN. Mr. Chairman, that is wonderful. Up until now,
we have not known even what witnesses you were going to bring
before us because you kept that a secret.

Now you are going to let us call our own. That is great.
Chairman PERKINS. Go ahead.
Mr. HAWKINS. I would like to commend Mrs. Chisholm, a former

member of this committee, for an excellent statement. I certainly
support the statement entirely.

May I say, first, Mrs. Chisholm, the reference in your statement
to title VII of CETA--

Mrs. CHISHOLM. It should be VI.
Mr. HAWKINS. I would suggest the record be corrected; that all

references. to title VII be corrected to refer to title VI, the public
service employment program.

It has been suggested, Mrs. Chisholm, that in some way these
programs that have been highly evaluated as being cost effective in
some way relate to the tax structure and add taxes. Some individ-
uals likewise suggest a tax reform that would provide that those
who are better able to pay the taxes should pay their taxes, and
relieve some of us who are less able to pay in order to support
these much needed programs.

I would like to suggest to the gentleman from Illinois, my very
dear friend, Mr. Erlenborn, that the corporate tax has actually
been reduced in the last 5 years and last year, the 20 major oil
companies that made $30 billion in added profit after taxes also got
a little tax reduction as a result of the 1978 tax reduction, and that
they are only taxed one-half of the windfall profits.

I would like to get one-half of my taxes exempted from any
taxation, too. I would like to be placed in the same position as
Mobil Oil and 1 am sure if we did that, these social programs would
also be in the same situation.

I take it the thrust of your statement is in rather sharp disagree-
ment to the President's budget proposals and that it does present
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alternatives. The Congressional Black Caucus, of* which both of us
are members, have been for several years suggesting that the ad-
ministration get back to the full employment track, which does, by
approval of the Congress as well as the executive branch, outline a
program that is well structured.

But it would seem to me the alternative to treating the patient's
illness is to quit feeding the patient poison.

It seems to me, rather than engaging in budget cuts that add
nothing to the fight against the inflation and which will turn the
money over to local governments without any strings attached-
certainly that is not a proper way to approach these problems.

The thing I would like to ask you, however, because of the
limited time, with respect to the educational programs, you did not
deal in your statement with what I regard as one of the great
deficiencies of the block grant proposal. That is, the money is
turned over to local governments without any strings attached.

As you will recall under the construction of title 1, which we
spent many years to obtain in the first instance, the theory was
that the moneys that would be added to local governments, that
they would still have to maintain the local effort and that this
money would not supplant what local governments are doing.
Under the block grant as proposed by the administration, the way I
see it, it is revenue sharing and that it can actually not add
anything to reaching those who have special educational problems.

Did you mention that in your statement?
Mrs. CHISHOLM. Yes.
Mr. HAWKINS. You did?
Mrs. CHISHOLM. Yes, sir, I did.
Mr. HAWKINS. Then I assume you are a strong supporter of the

idea that this money, regardless of what happens, should definitely
be moneys that are supplementary to what local governments are
doing and not as a means of being used as revenue sharing and
therefore destroy the idea of reaching these educational groups?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I agree.
Mr. HAWKINS. I did not see that in your statement.
Mrs. CHISHOLM. I did not go into it in tremendous detail, but I

did make mention of it.
Mr. HAWKINS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman PERKINS. Next, Mr. Kramer.
Mr. KRAMER. Mrs. Chisholm, let me compliment you on your

statement. As usual, you are indeed eloquent.
I, Mrs. Chisholm, share a concern of many American people,

certainly those in my district and many from outside of my district
who I talk to, who are very disturbed about the direction that our
country is moving in, very disturbed about things that are happen-
ing, some of which Mr. Erlenborn alluded to.
- Not that poor people are getting more than their just due, but
simply that the economic conditions under which we all must live
are becoming almost intolerable and do you share that perspective
that you also have deep concern about what has been happening in
our country in the last decade in terms of the economics of just
making ends meet for all of our citizens?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Of course I share that very, very deep concern.
There is no question in my mind that we have problems in our
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system right now, but I think that we have to be able to look across
the board as to the reason for these problems, which have not
developed in a vacuum, which have not developed overnight.

There have been many danger signals in this country for the
past 8 to 10 years that we were headed in this direction.

We take into consideration our foreign tariff rates and our for-
eign policies and look what has happened to the textile worker and
the electronic people that reside in the northeastern part of this
country where those industries are now carried on abroad at a
lower rate because of cheap labor and yet our tariff rate does
nothing about it.

We have very, very deep problems across the board. Of course I
am concerned.

Mr. KRAMER. You may not agree with the techniques, but would
you not agree with the conclusion, perhaps, that there is a need to
do things a different way than perhaps we have been addressing
them in the past in terms of your own perspective where you are
concerned deeply about the problems of the poor, the disadvan-
taged, and the handicapped; that even though so many of these
programs have been in effect for, in some cases, a considerable
period of time, they have not really done the job in the way you
would have liked to see the job done and even though the programs
have been instituted, many of the same problems which they are
statutorily directed to address are still with us and that perhaps
there may be a better way of doing things than we have done in
the past?

Maybe all the Reagan proposals are not the magic answer, but
we ought to start with the perspective that we do need, in fact, a
new way of handling some of these difficult problems in our soci-
ety.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I would definitely agree with you that you do
need new ways. You have to throw out solutions that have not
worked, but in the process, you don't throw out the baby with the
bath water.

You don't completely annihilate, devastate, and have nothing in
return. I go back to one thing that is bothering me.

No one has yet told me-maybe it is not that important-what
you are going to do with these thousands of persons who have been
in the CETA program, many coming off of public welfare rolls,
many lacking skills requisite to function in a highly sophisticated
society.

Nobody has come up with an alternative to replace it. I am not
against the change, but we have to have something in position to
take up the slack of these people that can no longer contribute.

Mr. KRAMER. I think you make a good point about CETA, but let
me tell you where I am coming from on CETA.

My idea of the CETA program is a program that gives people the
capability of going out and then at some point, not forever, but at
some point within a reasonable period of time, moving into the
private sector on a permanent basis where they get a job that
provides a decent living.

They are productive and they become taxpayers. And yet, despite
all the billions of dollars we have put into the CETA program, I
tried to find statistics last year as to how many placements, perma-
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nent placements, have actually been made in the private sector as
a result of the CETA program, and there is no emphasis in the
Department of Labor on that.

They can't give you a figure as to how many people have ever
been permanently placed in the private sector as a result of all the
billions of dollars that we have put into CETA.

Mr. HAWKINS. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. KRAMER. One minute. I would suggest that this is a require-

ment for a new way of' doing business.
Let me make one other point and then I will yield to the gentle-

man from California.
Chairman PERKINS. Your time has already expired.
Mr. KRAMER. Will the Chair give me the humanitarian justice it

showed to the gentleman from Illinois and give me I additional
minute?

Chairman PERKINS. Go ahead.
Mr. KRAMER. I would very much be interested in your response

to that, Mrs. Chisholm.
One other matter. This is not by way of exclusion, but I think it

does have, perhaps, some consideration for our conversation.
On page 8, you point out the subsidies for upper and upper

middle class children in the child nutrition program would be cut
out under the Reagan proposals.

Now, your statement is obviously couched in terms of impact on
the poor and the disadvantaged.

Would you not agree that that is an appropriate place to perhaps
make some savings, to, in fact, remove a subsidy from people who
are able to afford to purchase for their children school lunches at
still reasonable rates, or perhaps the other alternative for them, to
take the lunch bag off the shelf and dust off the lunch box and
take peanut butter sandwiches again?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I say that would be a good place to do it, but
what I am looking at is the overall impact, the ramifications of the
fact that in many instances, total feeding programs in our schools
will have to close up or shut down merely because of the cost
effectiveness of running these programs.

If somebody can come up with some other kind of solution to
make sure the poor and the hungry will be able to get the lunch
and the meals in spite of not serving quite as great numbers as
before, surely I will go along with it.

Chairman PERKINS. Mr. Ford.
Mr. FORD. Thank you. Apropos of the last remarks of the gentle-

man from Colorado, I don't know if he was here yesterday, but the
food service people from his State indicated that the changes would
result in closing of 60 to 70 percent of the school lunch programs in
the schools of that State.

As a matter of fact, he was agreeing with the premise of your
statement. With regard to the question of whether these programs
have worked, one has to observe that a Cadillac is a beautiful
automobile, but if you put a 5-gallon can of gas in it and want to
drive to the west coast, you won't get very far.

Unfortunately, that is the way these programs have been
starved. The administration acknowledges that the Head Start pro-
gram, which came out of this committee, is a great program, but
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we have never served more than 20 percent of the eligible children
who should be in Head Start. And, even with that very minor
contribution on a percentage basis, everybody acknowledges it has
been a success.

We have never reached the 50-percent mark in title I. We have
never given the schools 50 percent of the money that this commit-
tee has identified would be necessary to do what we said should be
done with title I.

So if there has been a deficiency in the program, it has been the
fact that we have had successive administrations and weak-kneed
Congresses that have been unwilling to put enough gasoline in this
beautiful vehicle after this committee constructed it to do its job.

Mr. KRAMER. Will the gentleman yield?
Mr. FORD. I will yield briefly.
Mr. KRAMER. Are you suggesting, then, the solution to all of

these problems that are besetting the country is that we should
move substantially forward in increasing the amounts that we are
presently spending on these programs or should we do it a different
way?

Mr. FORD. As a matter of fact, I could give you a list of programs
that we could increase and accomplish far more of Mr. Reagan's
objectives than his plan is going to accomplish.

I think Mrs. Chisholm-I just want to address myself to page 11
of your statement with respect to block grants.

There was an early rush to embrace block grants by many of our
friends in educational, administration, particularly at the State
level, until they began to examine the proposal more closely. You
put your finger on what I consider to be one of the most serious
considerations that they must have. Others who think they are
doing State and local educational agencies a favor by going to block
grants should have this in their mind as well.

You point out for example, two categories of populations who
were not being served until the Federal Government determined as
a matter of policy that we would serve them-the bilingual chil-
dren and the handicapped.

You also pointed out that there was the opportunity for people in
those categories to continue the funding for their programs by
court action. You mentioned that States like mine, Michigan,
which requires the education of handicapped children and requires
the education of bilingual children, would be places where that
would happen.

I submit to you, in light of the Law decision in California, that
every State which has a constitutional provision like that-at least
28 consitutions that I am aware of which say something to the
effect that every child is entitled to a free public education-are
subject to having the court say what they said in California.

That language means what it says and it does not say every child
is entitled to free public education unless it is inconvenient or
expensive to educate them.

Now, if we handed the State departments a bundle of money in a
little black bag and said, now we are going to give you 70 cents, 75
cents on the dollar. the money we have been spending for those
national purposes, you pass it out more efficiently and accomplish
the purposes.
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What they are going to discover is that they are going to be in

court and the judge will tell them:
But You %%ill .pend every penny you spent last year on bilingual children )edause

unhls, you do that. you will be violating constitutional requirements.
You will spend every IXnny' you spent last year on handicapped children.
I have absolutely no objection to that, but once you pick at least

those two categories and the court tells you that you must make up
out of your deficient funds all of last year's expenditures, what is
left for the disadvantaged kids in title I?

Something has to give. I find it sort of like the macho head of the
household who has been passing out the money to the wife and five
kids for years and finally he says:

I lonev. I am impressed 1ith this new idea of' equalit. and I am going to let you
decide how much to pass out to each of the five children lor" education and every.
thing else from now on.

llowever. I am going to deduct 2.5 percent from what I have been passing out.
Now, there is not a housewife in the country that is dumb

enough to take that one on because she knows somebody has to
lose and she ends up being the one that has to do it.

And for the school people around the country-we are going to
cut 25 percent out of the pot, give it to them and have them do
everything that has been done better.

That is really a cruel hoax on them and I think they are waking
up to it.

I want to compliment you for once again going through the veil
and the curtain that has been thrown up around us to identify
what is really wrong with block grants.

I trust this committee will reject them completely.
Chairman PE,:RKINS. Mr. Petri.
Mr. PETRI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, my colleague

and neighbor, for coming and testifying today.
This is a big diverse, imperfect, and wonderful country with a

new President and new administration.
They have been on the job now for 2 months. There has been a

lot of criticism of this plan they have come forward with.
I wonder if there are any features of it that you like or things

you would like to point out that the President has done that are
good?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. Well, I would say that I don't believe in just
knocking people just for the sake of knocking them.

I really believe that the President, on the basis of his own
philosophies, own idealogies, own approach to things, really be-
ieves that he is pursuing the right course.

It is up to us to try to inculcate in him on the basis of substan-
tive evidence and the impact on human beings that his course is

-not entirely the right course.
And I hope that he will be learning and listening-he has only

been in office a relatively few months-but to see essentially basi-
cally his ideology and his philosophical approach from politics dif-
fers from that of many other persons, and within that particular
kind of framework, he feels he is doing what is supposed to be
done.

For those of us who see otherwise, and recognize that the human
beings and people are being hurt, it is our job to point this up.
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Mr. PErri. Thank you. I would like to point out, too, that in fact,
there seem to be no sacred cows, because I represent dairy cows
and dairy farmers in Wisconsin and the first group being singled
out for a very substantial blow-in fact, we are voting on it tomor-
row in the House-will be the dairy people of the country.

I think the average taxable income of dairy farmers in Wisconsin
is less than $15,000) a year and the cuts that are being talked about
could result in reduction of' their income in the neighborhood of
$5,000 a year.

They have been telling me that if they are across-the-board cuts,
and if that is what is needed in this country, they are willing to
support it, but they wonder why they are being singled out for the
first cuts.

Do you think this is fair?
Mrs. CmsIoLm. No; I don't think it is fair at all, but I think

perhaps what we need to do, if it is possible for us to do this, is
that beyond our own political party lines, that somehow when we
realize the very important segments of America, their quality of
life is going to be seriously impaired or damaged, that we forget
about our particular political party and come together on the basis
of' some commonality of goals with respect to the people in this
country, because, as I see it now, it is the persons in the upper
income brackets in this country who are not going to be harmed.

In fact, they are being assisted in very, very subtle ways through
the proposed tax cuts and loopholes and what have you.

So I think this goes beyond party lines, Mr. Petri.
I would be willing to join with you and your dairy farmers, if you

join with me and my poor children in the inner-city areas and let's
remember, you are a Republican and I am a Democrat.

We have some common goals.
Mr. PETRI. On the block grant, there is a lot of criticism in your

statement of the President's proposals to go to block grants.
Do you know what the reaction of local officials is toward that in

your areas? For example, my impression is that Mayor Koch is
supporting going to block grants.

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I would say basically speaking, generally speak-
ing, that you will find that a number of mayors, and a number of
Governors, will be for block grants.

In New York, it is a form of general revenue-sharing. You have
no guidelines, no parameters around it.

You give them the money and they make the decision as to
whom it will go, how it will go. Why shouldn't they?

It gives them more authority and more power over the pur-
chases.

Chairman PERKINS. Mr. Clay.
Mr. WILLIAM CLAY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mrs. Chisholm, for the benefit of those who talk about new

directions and safety nets and the truly needy and at the same
time talk about placing some 300,000 CETA workers in private-
sector jobs, I would like for you to maybe tell us about the official
unemployment rate in this country and then the unofficial unem-
ployment rate and then perhaps tell us where these jobs are that
this administration is talking about placing 300,000 CETA workers
in.
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Mrs. CHISHOLM. First, I think, irrespective of the national statisti-
cal data that is given out each month by the statistical depart-
ments of the labor departments on your statewide level and nation-
al level, that the unemployment rate is disproportionately high
among the minorities in this country.

Then when one takes into consideration the 16 to 21 age group-
in my own district I represent in New York, close to 30 percent of
the employable adults are unemployed. The category of those per-
sons, 16 to 21, about 42.9 percent are unemployed.

All of these are people who are potentially productive citizens
and should be on the tax rolls of this country.

When you talk about putting people to work, where are the jobs?
Nobody comes up as to where these jobs are going to be coming
from.

You look every day in this country, in different regions of the
country, not even minority areas of this country, and you find that
the people are being laid off.

People are not working. People in the energy industry, the auto-
mobile industry. This is a massive national problem.

So the jobs of which they speak are almost practically nonexis-
tent. What bothers me about the administration's proposal is that
the administration has not definitely pinpointed or targeted just
where you are going to place all of these people when they are off
CETA September 1 of this year.

And the majority of them will be gone. What is your alternative?
I would not be so much against the administration saying, sure, we
have to look for new ways to solving our problems. But in the face
of not having the alternative, all you are going to be doing is to be
placing all of these persons once again on the public assistance
rolls of this country.

It is not logical to its conclusion. So I don't know what they are
talking about when they talk about all these jobs they 3re going to
put people on.

People are going to go to work. Maybe they will come out of the
sky. I don't know. But I don't see it.

Mr. WILLIAM CLAY. One other comment and this is in response to
Mr. Kramer, who said he did not know what the record was in
terms of the placement of CETA workers.

He would be interested in knowing what that record is. For the
record, 54 percent of those who have gone through CETA have
been placed in unsubsidized employment.

And substantially more who have gone through CETA have gone
either back to school or into the military.

Thank you.
Chairman PERKINS. We will call on you now, Mrs. Fenwick.
Mrs. FENWICK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I welcome my colleague and what a relief it is to find someone

who has the same figures I have.
Between 24 and 25 million poor of whom 16 million are white, 7

million are black, and the remainder are Hispanic, Indian, and
other minorities.

That is the record and I am so glad we agree.
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I would like to say, though, my understanding is that the present
Federal share, for example, of the AFDC program is 7.2 billion
which is what the Reagan proposal is.

Now, that does not allow for increasing numbers and there are
some 10 million people now involved in AFDC of whom 8 million
are children, so I don't know if the numbers of those in poverty are
diminishing.

In one point in your testimony, you said that after including cash
and noncash welfare payments, 3.1 percent were left below any
kind of poverty level. Certainly we are hoping that they will dimin-
ish still further. I would like to speak for a moment about CETA.

My chairman, with whom I have discussed this so often knows
my enthusiasm for title VII of the CETA program.

It is absolutely splendid, at least in my district. We have pro-
grams that have produced 100-percent employment in the private
sector, unsubsidized, permanent employment. Title VII can be ex-
cellent.

On the other hand, title 11(d) and VI-section 2(d) and title VI-
are the cause of terrible problems. In one county in my State-not
in my district-CETA was sued by the NAACP on account of the
numbers of jobs demanded by politicians, not just the CETA jobs
only, but also the administrative jobs.

I was discussing this today with another person who has served
as a CETA employee in that program, who came to my office to see
me this morning.

Administrators from other counties have told me, "Just get 2(d)
and VI off my back and I can do something for the people I am
supposed to help."

We cannot go on pouring money into programs that are frustrat-
ing the desires of honest administrators and not serving the people
they are supposed to serve.

Now, we were told about the school lunches. It is true, apparent-
ly, if we do not subsidize the school lunches of the affluent-who
are about 80 percent of all the people who need neither free nor
subsidized lunches-something damaging will happen with the
school lunch program.

It seems to me that if 80 percent don't need it, we ought to
concentrate on those who do and devise some kind of program that
would be taking care of those who need the help.

We can't go on, like this Shirley. It is perfectly clear that in
every single place where we pour out money, we find fraud and
abuse; and what does that mean?

Very often it means the money has stuck in the hands of the
administrators and has never gotten down to the poor.

We know how to collect money, but we really don't know how to
disburse it. And I don't mean stuck in the hands of the administra-
tors in any corrupt way.

Too much money is spent. We had a child care program in my
State for 6 years. We had just reached 1,000 children. $4,000 per
child per year.

Of that $1,200 was administrative cost in the State capitol. Only
$2,800 was being used in the schools in the day care centers them-
selves.
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And $2,800) was more than double-the cost of another fine pro-
gram which was approved by the State and run by a nonprofit
organizat ion.

Now, the State is supposed to be nonprofit, too. What are we
going to do with this kind of' problem?

We had another problem. A lot of suits were brought against one
of the community action programs because the money that was
supposed to be spent in fixing up the houses, winterizing the
houses, did not get used properly.

Only two houses were done at tremendous cost. We must have
the energy assistance program. I couldn't agree with you more; but
what do we say when we find that money is going to Guam, the
Virgin Islands. Puerto Rico, and Hawaii?

We don't know how to spend it, Shirley.
Mrs. CJistioi.M. May I remind you, Millie, by saying that you

know the Congress in its wisdom after much debate and discussion
and what have you, we passed these programs.

We put the laws on the books to perfect the lives of the people in
this country, but I believe-and I hope none of my peers will
misunderstand what I am going to say next, but I have been here
now 13 years and I have watched many things and I feel it very
deeply.

I believe that we need to do a better job of oversight and account-
ability and monitoring. We have lots of oversight committees all
over the place. Some of them hardly function.

Mrs. FENWI'K. They don't work.
Mrs. (.lillilsOIN. We have got to make them work.
Mrs. FENWICK. How?
Mrs. CHIiSIOLM. It is a democracy and we are supposed to be

participating.
Mrs. FI,;NWICK. In January 1977, the General Accounting Office-

and nobody questions their motives or their methods-reported
widespread fraud abuse and mismanagement in one program.

In January 1979, the Inspector General reported the same tiling.
In July of 1979, the Agriculture Committee brought to the floor a
bill with substantially no changes to correct these abuses and with
a demand for $9.46i million more or nobody will have food stamps in
September.

As I said on the floor, Shirley, you remember, "That is black-
mail. Nobody is going to let food stamps go down.

We can't have people hanging on the ropes with no food stamps
in September. Why don't they correct the abuses?

And then what happens? You get letters from the public-you
probably have gotten them, too-"I see food stamps being ex-
changed for liquor in the liquor stores."

That is what the public sees. It is wrong. It is against the law. It
is wrong, but it damages the image of" the food stamp program.

Chairman PERKINS. Mr. Miller.
Mr. MILLER. Thank you, Mrs. Chisholm, for your statement and

the statement on behalf' of the Black Caucus because I think it
serves as a reminder why many of* us came to the Congress and I
would like to say to some of* those people who have just come here
maybe they ought to remember what was here before title I when
poor minority children were not being served, when schoolchildren
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were in schools in my district without books, without teachers,
without clean restrooms.

And when we passed the Bilingual Act, they might remember
these kids were shut in at home. Their parents couldn't get them
into school. They were in institutions. They were kept on drugs.
They had no accessibility to those schools, bilingual.

We found in the State of Arizona that because these children
could not learn in these schools, 45 percent of the Spanish-sur-
named kids were classified as educationally handicapped.

That was the reord before we went down this direction. That was
the record before the Congress took this mandate.

Mr. Kramer said these programs have been around a long time
and they haven't seemed to achieve what we wanted them to do.

I would remind Mr. Kramer the education to all handicapped
children has only been out there 2 years to deal with the problem
that was not dealt with by local educational agencies for better
than the 50 years.

I would remind him, for those who say, "Isn't there a different
way; isn't there an alternative," you know what-there is no alter-
native to taking care of' poor people, to feeding hungry children, to
take care of pregnant women in nutritional risks, to take care to
make sure young people get an education, are not denied it because
they are handicapped.

For those who want to do it a different way, maybe they ought to
read the law and the reports, because title I is working.

These children do better on tests than those who do not partici-
pate. They do better in basic reading and basic math than those
who do not participate.

The WIC program saves us $3. For every $1 we spend, we save $3
in hospital costs.

We have cut infant mortality by somewhere between 35 and 50
percent for the mothers of the children who participated in this
program.

Why would you do it differently if you get back $3 for every $1
you invest?

I think you better separate out the rhetoric and the numbers in
these programs. You can't describe a program in terms of numbers.

You have to describe a program in terms of the integrity of that
program.

I read a letter here from the Secretary of Education and he tells
us all these children can be taken care of. Let's see what he told
Mr. Stockman:

The draft bill would authorize the use of funds not for the prior purposes. per se,
but for the generic activities to consolidate program support.

What does he say?
The specific statutory requirements for free and appropriate education would be

repealed as would the requirements for the individual education plan.
So that the bright child has to have a free and appropriate

education would no longer be in Federal law, nor education for
handicapped children.

It is about time this Congress started looking at what-these
Departments are writing back and forth to one another.
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The funds will be used for the same purpose. lie said earlier in
the letter-not so. "The benefits are targeted," he says earlier-not
SO.

The funds could not be used for tax relief. However, as you
pointed out, they can supplant the funds.

They have no requirement for maintenance of efforts, no require-
ment for matching. In effect, the funds will be used for tax relief
directly or indirectly.

I think it is also just absolute hypocrisy for this Congress to
suggest that the inflationary cycle in this country is being led by
malnourished infants, by poor working women, by the working
poor of this country, by those who are getting school lunch pro-
grams.

And as you point out in your statement, Mrs. Chisholm, accord-
ing to the Chicago Center study, a typical poor working mother in
New York, with two school-age children-this is a woman who goes
to work every day, every day, but she just has the privilege of
being part of the working poor-would have her disposable month-
ly income reduced by 15 percent from about $700 a month for
family of three to $600.

If you factor in a 12-percent-inflation rate or 1:3-percent-inflation
rate, which we apparently have now, it sounds to me like this
working mother, who is poor, who goes to work every day, has just
received a 28 percent cut in her standard of living.

Chairman PERKINS. The time of the gentleman has expired.
Mr. MILLER. If people believe for one moment these people are

leading the charge on inflation, we have our priorities mixed up
and we should look at these programs because many, many of
these programs are working in spite of the rhetoric, and the Con-
gress did make substantial changes in the food stamp program.

That committee worked overtime and made cuts and made ad-
ministrative changes in that program, before you ever voted on it
on the floor.

Read the report.
Chairman PERKINS. Mr. DeNardis.
Mr. ERLENBORN. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. DENARDIS. Yes.
Mr. ERLENBORN. I thank you.
I would ask that the gentleman from California would identify

the source of the document and put the entire document in the
record so we might all share in it.

Mr. MILLER. Letter to Mr. Dave Stockman, Director, Office of
Budget Management, Washington, D.C.: "Dear Mr. Stockman." It is
signed "T. H. Bell."

Mr. ERLENBORN. Would you put the document in the record?
Mr. MILLER. I will be delighted to.
[The letter referred to above follows:]

BELL TO STOCKMAN Lr'rER TRANSMI1-IN; DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION DRAFT OF
CONSOI.I DATION LEGISLATION

Mr. DAVID STOCKMAN,
Director. Office of Management und Budget.
Washington. D.C.

DEAR MR. ST(X'KMAN: I am transmitting with this letter the proposal of the
Department of Education for elementary and secondary education consolidation
legislation. This proposal. if adopted by the Administration and enacted by the

81-871 0 - 82 - 18
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Congress along the lines we recommend %%ould carry out the intent and spirit of the
Administration's goal to shift control over education policy away Fron the Federal
government and back to State and local authorities.

This bill represents a significant change in FederalStale relationships, one as.
suing that States and localtie,-that pay $11 out of every $12 of the public
education bill--can make a)pro)riate choices about how best to meet the education-
al needs that the dozens of existing programs address. They would remove many
l)rocedural and reporting requirements, but also give States and localities responsi-
hility to make choices among completing needs. let me describe several important
aspects of the proposal.

I. DEs(rt()1ON OF DrA^Fr HIM.
The proposed bill would authorize two major consolidations involving around -15

existing elementary and secondary education programs. The first would support
educational services to students with special needs; the second would support activi-
ties to improve the resources available to schools so that they can perform their
educational functions more effectively.
Tille I. A.. Lax ('dIucatmInl aencv g'nsoholdati

The first authorization, for services to students with special needs, would be
divided between services conducted at the local district level fwhich we call Part Ai
and those conducted directly or under contracts or grants made by the States (which
we call Part B. Part A specifically consolidates programs for the educationally
disadvantaged iit le I1. handicapp(-d P.L. 114-I.12, ,nd children in desegregating
schools (Emergency School Assistance). From appropriated amounts, minimum pay-
ments would be made based on the level of school district or State awards for the
consolidate(l programs in fiscal year llSl. Aiter that. 75 percent of the Federal
al)l)ropriations would be allotted among counties on the same basis that Title I is
n(w'. States would distribute funds among districts within the counties and make
the cash translrs, as they do currently, but otherwise not affect the distribution of
these allotments. The remaining 25 percent would be allotted to States on the basis
of school age population. States would determine the basis for distribution among
districts using population- number of handicapped children. number of students in
desegregating schools, or other available indicators of non-poverty aspects of special
needs in education covered by Part A.

There would he no maintenance of effort, supplement not sup)lant or other fiscal
controls per se. Funds could be used only for activities that would have been
su)portale under the programs that would be consolidated. Every three years there
would be a local plan that describes the special needs of students, the district
programs to neet these needs, and the criteria for assessing progress: the basis for
allocating funds within the local agency among special need groups and schools
evaluation procedures and ways that children in private schools would participate.
In determining use of funds for various groups of special need students. school
districts would not be bound by the amounts they received under the 75 percent and
25 percent allocation factors. The district would give assurance that it would pro-
vide equitable services to the children with special needs. This provision, and the
optional State monitoring mentioned below, would substitute an education service
approach to meeting special needs for the elaborate system of fiscal controls man-
dated in present laws. The district would adopt whatever policies it chooses to
permit public comment on the plan. for publication and public hearings.

States would review and comment on the plans fto hell) improve services) but not
approve them. They would disapprove plans only if" Federal law was not followed.
States would be permitted to deduct 1 percent from total allotments within the
State for the review and comment process and for collecting periodic fiscal reports
and records. They would be permitted to trake an extra .5 percent if they elect to
monitor the extent to which districts are providing edcucational services on an
equitable basis.

Private school children would benefit in proportion to their share of students
counted for determining fund allocations to local districts. Existing program grant
laws would be repealed. including the "'free appropriate education" mandate in 9.1-
1-12. Education for the Handicapped Act (which would be addressed separately
through regulations under section 51rl of the Rehabilitation Act,.

Provision is made for due process procedures for aggrieved parties through one
level of administrative review (without successive appeals. If the grievance is not
satisfied the complaint would be addressed in court proceedings.
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Title I IL. State t.fnsohdttEon. sIesrll 1r(Ids
Part B of the first authorization provi(ldes for education of students with special

needs for which the State administrative role has been predominant in the prior
programs. This includes State operated schools for the handicapped, neglected and
delinquent; State arrangements through contracts with local educational agencies to
provide educational services for migrants: and State grants through several organi-
zations local districts, community colleges, vocational institutions. etc., for adult
basic education services. The allotments for these programs would be based on
factors that would provide relative shares in proportion to the present allocations.
After first assuring a minimum payment to each State based on the actual awards
to States in fiscal year 19Si. SOi percent of the appropriations would be distributed
on the basis of the number of students enrolled in State institutions, or number of
migrants in residence in the State. The remaining 20 percent would be distributed
in prol)rtion to the distribution of adults lacking certificates of graduation. All of
these factors are used in current programs. States would receive all of such allot.
ments as a block and would determine the basis for allocation among these purposes
in a State plan. Such a plan would also describe the means by which grants or
contracts would be awarded for the migrant and adult basic education program, and
provide for dissemination of information about the State plan. The Federal Govern-
ment would review and comment on the State plan but not approve it. Existing
program grant laws would be repealed.
Title I1. State consolidation. improving school resources

The second title of the proposal would consolidate about thirty programs that
have provided support for a variety of activities organized around purposes such as
schoolbooks, teacher corps, metric education, career education, special education.
personal development, advisory services for school desegregation and many more.
These do not support regular instructional services, but are intended to expand.
strengthen or diversify resources for education. The draft bill would authorize use of'
funds not for the prior purposes per se but for the generic activities the consolidated
programs supported. Hence, funds could improve the strength and variety of the
instructional programs and the expertise of professional staff: support acquistion of
instructional materials, and participation of community groups in education; assist
information, demonstration, management improvement and other projects as well
as regional and interstate projects; and develop the technical expertise and adminis-
trative capacity of the States' education agency itself. The grant authorizations
consolidated by this measure would be repealed.

After allotting funds to each State on the basis of actual awards under the
consolidated program in fiscal year 19!. remaining appropriations would be allo-
cated to States of the basis of school age population. States would describe in a State
plan. once in three years. the basis on which funds would be used for the authorized
purposes, the goals the State seeks to serve through use of such funds, and the
criteria that would be used for judging progress. The plan would also describe the
basis for distribution of allocations through formulas or competitive processes, the
extent of public consultation in development of the plan. and private school parti,.i-
pation. Funds must be spent on the authorized activities and reports on expendi-
tures would be required but no fiscal controls (such as maintenance of effort would
be imposed. The Federal Government would review and comment on these plans but
not approve them land would only disapprove them if Federal law was not followed).
It would also provide technical assistance if requested. Private school children
would benefit in proportion to their share of students in the aided activities. Due
process provisions similar to those described above would be included.

2. MAJOR CHANGE. IN FEDERAL APPROACH

The Department's proposal would fundamentally restructure the manner of pro-
viding Federal assistance in elementary and secondary education and the role
defined for Federal in contrast with State and local officials. For example:

Existing grant authorizations would be repealed, eliminating many provisions
that generate the need for regulations and reports for some 45 Federal elementary
and secondary programs. The replacement would be only what is included in the
draft bill. Note, however, the bill itself would not affect civil rights laws except for
the handicapped, discussed elsewhere in this letter. It would substitute its own
complaint resolution procedures for those contained in section 425 of the General
Education Provisions Act. but otherwise leave that Act in effect.

There would be no set-asides, earmarks or other division of funds beyond the
three appropriation authorizations and their allocations described in the preceding
paragraphs, the usual 1 percent for territories, and a 1/2 of I percent holdback for
Department evaluation, dissemination of information and like activities related to



	  

the vons.-idated pruograisl Stales ,,uhl bel limited in se '.0 fund.- fir adilulitra-
tli, purposes so that even Itough the% would d assume additional fund malagellment
U('fMmI.ibilit ivs t(he could not expand spending i administ rat (o.
'hr ar. l) fiscal requirements such as maintenance of1, effort., upllell.Int not

supplant. comiarabilitv. excess cost or matching T, le proposal would .substitute for
these requirt-ments ali assurance Itom school districts that servicts- are equitably
provid(F.(l an erlucation judgment instead of a fiscal o(e-to be monitored on a nion-
prescriptive. after the fact and selective sampl' basis

The hderal State local roles are based on 'trust.' The new(, cnception of' roles
replaces existing threats to withdraw % funding if certain things are not done. with an
emphasis on review. comment. discussion, and technical assistance il requested, Ito
improve the services provided under the consolidated 1rants. Funding could only Ie
withheld if actions art. not in conformance with Federal law Monitoring would be
.. ective and intensive-in the manner of GAO-rather than re extitive. superficial
and universal as is the present custom. The system is base,( on a belief that
edlucators will. by and large. try their best to serve students well rather than a
helihf that such oficials are not to be trusted or that their views have not been
affected b% Federal goals over the last 1: years
The auihorizations are intended to support rather than erode State and local

authority by vesting responsibility in duly constituted decision bodies and their
designated appointees and not reqluiring. fur example, advisory Colmmn it tees that
sormenetines assume decision marking powers.

The single most critical element in the department. proposal is the planning
provisions. These are a new departure for" the Federal (;ovt'rnent in that they are
not described as forms to fill out in order to ''apply' for fund-, to which school
districts or States art entitled. They are i tended to encourage discusslols and
regular local and State plan ing )rocesses in order to reach decisions as to ho%%
students-. can best be served d States and school districts would determine how these
would be prepared. These requirements are extensive. a, one' might conclude from
the above description of thei draft bill. But in ny view they cover matters that an%
school or State should address in the prudent management of their affairs I have
reviewed them i detail I believe that plans describing local and State decisions, as
lese would call f(ir. are essential. They w-ill make it possible for the Administration

to say these things about the proposal that are crucial to our just ificat ion i the
congress s

that the funds will be used for the same purposes is were served by the
previous programss.

that benefits are targeted on the same needy students as before.
that the funds will not be used for tax relief.
that the needy students will be equitably served without complex. cumber-

sometV and often inellective fiscal requirements: and
that imf)roving the education of students is our goal.

The )lans provide a way to accommodate ' different State interests and State local
relationships without imposing a single Federal "'mold.' No requirement as to
format, no regulations as to content beyond what is stated in the law. and rio
standards as to what are acceptable measures of' progress would be prescribed A
plan would be required rnly once every three years ,not annually.

t., ISSUiES IN~ FDrw(ATION CONSOL~iIDATION

The department's proposal represents a responsible way to deal with the issue of
education consolidation. Fdlucatirn programs may be more categorical than any
others in the Federal Government. The categorical approach is so thoroughly en-
trenched that even as the congress s has begun to consider consolidation measures
over the past few years the bills could sometimes have been described as little more
than a rearrangement of* categories, with requirements imposed as extensive as the
present ones. Of course there is an infinite variety of ways that existing programs
might be grouped or divided and all of these will be under consideration as the
Administration's bill is debated in Congress. The contending interest-, are exception-
ally tenacious and put forth claims to which the Administration must give atten-
tion Let me mention just a few such claims:

Alloca.ioni, among recipients-Representatives of local school di.;tricts strongly
oppose a change in allocation procedures that would give States an opportunity to
determine intrastate distribution of funds, possibly changing the present relative
share's for central city and rural areas Simultaneously. representatives of' Gover-
nors. legislators, and other State officials tell us that since States provide the
largest share of education funds, they should have a larger say about use of Federal
grants. The Department's proposed bill is a compromise that would allocate a large
share of' funds. proportionate to the Title I allocation, to counties (% ith States
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dividing fund. anng (istris at pre-sent and allocate, all Other fund.- to St ates
Int t he latter case. .tate's wouldd detetrmin tilt appropriate asis foallr allk'tiiI( Itirts
In any event. local districts would determin tihe purtasv.e lot which the Iund-.
would be used locally. regardi.S. of the al lK't n arrangement

Allocation, among beneficiaries.;-Man* individuals be'liteve that present law- set
up an unttequal relationship I.tet% en support for the handicapped and for tihe educa-
tionally disadvantaged In brief, the argument is htt costs imposed by the statutorN
requirement for a "free appliro)riite education" lot the handicapped 4and similar
l)rovision.s in regulations under the ReIbhal it ation Act and in State laws, cannot Ie
avoided by State and local officials The claim is that school districts will direct
funds away from the etducationaliv disadvantaged aInd toward the handicapped
Simultaneously. spokespersons for the handicapped believe that a repeal of P I. 9 I -
142 would lead to States repealing their own statutes and a general diversion ol
funds away from the handicapped toward general school support.

The l)rolp)sed bill attempts to place this issue on a more stable footing by a plain
requirement that districts describe services lir' both handicapped and educatlnilly
disadvantaged students, following assessment of individual student needs.; by septa-
rating the allocatin procedure lor educationally disadvantaged and handicapped
fund-. to districts which creates a presumptive Ibut not relquireds Iivision for the two
area.,: and by suggested 4l)ut not mandator*v, limitation of Federal funding to the"'severely" handicapped. The specific statutory requirement for a "'ree apf)ropraite
education" would be repealed as would the requirement for Individual Education
Plans. Instead. these Iimatters would be handled outside the context ofl the consolida-
tion hill as regulations under Section ')III of the Rehabilitation Act.

State-local relations--The educat ion s .,t(m is highly complex and Federal actions
that would alter the relative positions ofl Stttes and their local (istricts art a matter
of special sensitivity. In I X States. ('hief State School Officers are elected and In 27,
they are appointed by State boards- These individuals and their organizations often
operate with sul)stantial independence f'ron governorrs by law, custom. or hot h. The
State education agencies play varying roles . in some cases doing little more than
distributing State support for education, in others administering fir ranging stand-
ards for services, and in at least a few cases actually assuming operational reslonsi-
bilitv from local school districts in emergency situations% Federal funding usually
provides a large fraction of State staff in education, sometimes far more than i
majority. States now spend. on the average,. about one hall of the total revenues for
elementary and secondary education. but the amount from State to State ranges
from 1I; percent to ;7 percent.

Local school districts provide services directly to students. but under widely
varying degrees of State control In many States. local school boards are stridentl,
independent. Moreover., even within at single State there is frequently a considerable
difference in latitude allowed Ior large cities compared with the smaller urban and
the rural school districts.

Any consolidation proposal that move.- the balance of this complex pattern strong-
hN one way or another would face insurmountable difficulties in Congressional
debate, For example. if a major share of funds were not allocated to districts 'as
described in the first issue. ab<ivt. or if a much greater role were imposed on all
States-regardless of their present practices-for determining use of funds. control
over applications. procedures, or other authority over local districts, the consolida-
tion bill could upset this balance between States and localities. In cases where
States have chosen to exert control over local planning and curriculum, nothing in
our proposed consolidation bill would interfere. But where they have not done so,
the proposed bill would permit long standing local independence to prevail.

Children in private schools-Federal benefits for children attending private
schools are also an issue. The draft bill provides for such benefits to the same degree
as present laws such as Title I anid Title IV (Improving School Practicel, These
provisions allow for benefits consistent with the proportion of eligible children in
private schools, require consultation between public and private school officials, and
authorize a by-pass 'permitting direct Department of Education contacts for serv-
ices when public schools cannot or will not provide them,.

Federal protections. set-asides. empha-ies-There are a host of issues surrounding
the existing Federal rore in enforcement and in providing incentives for various
types of actions Most significant. of course. are the provisions in existing laws that
are viewed as service or due process protections for various groups. These include
those for the handicapped, discussed above. and also the fiscal advisory committee,
reporting and other provisions now encompassed in laws such as Title I. The draft
bill proposes. as explained above, a different system based on trust and publicly
announced plans as a more constructive substitute that will not only remove awk-
ward administrative requirements but give greater emphasis to improving educa-



	  

tional quality for the students. Of course. the civil rights laws themselves rlitle VI.
Title IX. etc., are not changed by this bill.

Repeal of the Women's Educational 'quity Act has also been described as termi-
nating a Federal role to assist "through demonstration. developmental and dissemi-
nation activities" in reduction (if discriminatory practices based on sex (Title IX1.
tnder the prox osed dralt bill it is clear that such activities, currently supported
through direct federal awards in this and about 301 other areas, could be supported
by States. But there can be no assurance that States will do so. The current
Programs of' this type are not as visible in the draft bill as are those for the
educationally disadvantaged, handicapped. migrant and adult categories. Yet the
alternatives of' iII retaining all these at the Federal level or 121 specifically mandat-
ing or setting aside funds at the State level for each of then seem inconsistent with
the general objectives of* consolidation. We can expect that much of the public
debate on a consolidation bill will concern these issues.

Timing-Another argument that has been advanced concerns the timing of' the
consolidation pro postal. Some representatives of' educa ion a'.sociations have charac-
terized the consolidation as a device simply to reduce (lhe budget. One alternative
they offer would be to prepare a consolidation proposal through sone sort of'
negotiated process in which there would be wide participation, and resulting in a
f)lan that would be implemented over several years. For example, sone ongoing
activities that would be consolidated le.g., training of teachers of)erate on three
year cycles and should, it is claimed, be transferred to State administration over
such a period of time. A supporting argument is that the Federal Government
should involve the States and localities in any proposal that redefines the roles of
all "l)artners" in the intergovernmental system;1. It is not possible to respond to such
arguments if the Administration is to send a bill to Congress in a Few days. Of
course, we will expect these issues to be debated after the l)roposal is forwarded.

The attached papers l)repared by Department staff provide additional descriptive
material on our l)roposal together with the rationale for our decisions and options
that we considered and rejected. I commend them to your office. We appreciate the
participation of Bernard Martin and other OMB staff in our recent meetings to
discuss issues of consolidation with various association, research, and Department
program representatives. Department staff and I u-tand ready to assist you in any
way during your review of this draft bill.

Sincerely. T. iIl. BE:l,.
Mr. DENARDIS. I am a new member from Connecticut, a long-

time admirer of you and your work. and it is a privilege and
pleasure to be able to hear you and I will question you on a couple
of matters.

The debate on block grants versus categoricals has been, in my
opinion-and I think in the opinion of a number of other people-
rather disappointing thus far. More rhetoric than substance.

Advocates have been claiming that consolidation of programs
will result in efficiencies and conservation of scarce resources, par-
ticularly important in this time of budget stringencies.

Opponents have been claiming that block grants try to undo the
social programs and special mandates that have been established
through the past several decades.

But is it not possible with a good-faith effort, an effort which
unfortunately has not yet been manifest in this committee, to try
to carefully capture the advantages of both approaches.

That is to say, don't you think with your experience in this area,
it might be possible to carefully craft a block grant program which
consolidates and simplifies administration, thereby obviating the
need for the hundreds of pages of laws, the thousands of pages of
regulations, the 10,000 grants and 100,000 grant sites and several
million hours of paperwork annually that is necessary, both in
Washington and at home, and so forth, and yet preserves through a
simplified accountability system a guarantee for the remediation of
certain fundamental national purposes and programs.



2 67
Might this not be possible?
Mrs. CHISHOLM. No; but I am not going to say no in a vacuum.

Let me give you a little of my reasoning for saying no.
I always go back on the basis-I am a keen observer of city and

State government, mayors and Governors, how they handle their
funds and what have you.

Everything is connected in a very political manner. I remember
when we had general revenue-sharing in New York City. We really
felt that that was going to be able to assist those persons who were
the most powerless in the society, that those groups in the society
that had the most political power were able to bring the pressure
to bear on the mayor of the city of New York to use the general
revenue-sharing funds in other ways and, therefore, it always is a
case of those who have the political clout, the power within specific
kinds of groups and the collective pressure that completely annihi-
lates those persons at the very bottom of the trash pile who just
cannot compete.

I have too many examples to believe that you can use a block
approach and depend on the morality of the officials who are in
charge of equitability and taking care of people. That is part of the
problem in this country.

You know, sir, we would never had had-I know I talk a lot and
I have to because this is deep with me-black people in this coun-
try, for example, never would have gotten their civil rights if it
didn't emanate from certain laws on the books that were put by
the Federal Government.

You couldn't leave it to the States to do it. You couldn't leave it
to localities to give us our civil rights, so these things go back to
terms of historical patterns that lead you to be suspicious about the
morality of officials to do the job.

Mr. DENARDIS. A rather striking indictment.
Mrs. CHIsHOLM. But it is true.
Mr. DENARDIS. One of the fundamental articles of faith about

our American democracy is the ability of our people to make
choices for themselves at all levels of government, but let's not get
philosophical.

There are 550 categorical grants-in-aid programs, 40-some-odd
alone in education. And in your statement, you identify three. I
could perhaps add three or four more that deal with vulnerable
populations that might get lost in the shuffle, but what about the
others?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. All I am going to say, it would be wonderful in
this great democracy of ours, if in terms of the activities that
would result in equitability of opportunities and training for every
man, woman, and child, regardless of race, color, and creed, that
we would not have to resort to such mechanics, block grants,
categorical grants. But in reality, in pragmatic politics, it doesn't
work. It does not work.

I have seen it now for over 25 years of my life.
Chairman PERKINS. Mr. Kildee.
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much.
Thank you for your fine testimony, Mrs. Chisholm. I will be

brief.
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I heard some strange contradictions during these hearings. I
heard today a member, Mr. Kramer, say that the cuts for title I
are justified because the program has not achieved that which we
had hoped it would achieve.

So we cut it back. It has not achieved.
Last week, Richard Link, Deputy Secretary of Agriculture, said

we should cut WIC because it had achieved too much, that it had
been too successful-The growth of 7"3 percent in 7 years.

These are strange contradictions we find. And they are real
contradictions. Some contrasting philosophy. You quoted one of my
heros. First, let me quote Mr. Stockman, head of OMB, who on
Sunday said the people have no right to these services that you
talked about.

I am sure you heard that and read it with shock. And then we
have our good friend saying:

The moral test of* government is how it treats those who are in the dawn of life.
the children: those who are in the twilight of' li . the aged; and those who are in
the shadows of life, the sick, the needy. and the handicapped.

Quite a contrast there, isn't it, in philosophy? So my question to
you is, is it under this flag of fiscal integrity which Messrs. Reagan
and Stockman are flying about the country-is there not hidden
under that flag a philosophical and ideological flag to try to move
this country back?

Mrs. CHISHOLM. I do not want to sound too presumptious, but I
think the only thing one can always do is go, not on the patterns of
what they say and how they say it, but go on the patterns of their
behavior and their actions.

And over a period of time, you are able to add that and you will
get a certain kind of perspective or thrust coming out of it.

I believe that in some ways, they are-they may not be conscious
of it; they may not be even conscious of it because they believe so
deeply they are right-but I believe that they are on the road to
taking this country back.

Mr. KILDEE. I believe if their only purpose were to stabilize the
dollar, first, I think their programs would be different and they
would have wider support here in this Congress.

But they have another agenda beyond stabilizing the dollar, and
that agenda is to undo some of the programs of Lyndon Johnson,
Harry Truman, Franklin D. Roosevelt, even going back that far.

But I think we have to really warn the people that under that
flag of fiscal integrity, there is an ideological flag that would undo
much of those things that you and Mr. Perkins have built up in
this Congress for the people of this country.

I think those services are great and I think that when we read
the preamble of the Constitution, that people do have the right to
look to their Government for protection of their basic needs and I
disagree with Mr. Stockman and agree with you and Mr. Hubert
Humphrey.

Thanks for your tremendous testimony, Shirley.
Chairman PERKINS. Thank you very much.
Our next questioner is Mr. Craig.
Mr. CRAIG. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be brief, Mr. Chair-

maln.
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I appreciate the time and consideration of the other witnesses. I
would like to echo the remarks of my freshman colleague, Mr.
DeNardis, in relation to you, Mrs. Chisholm. As a freshman, it is a
pleasure for me to have you before this committee today, and with
the opportunity to meet you and hear your thoughts. I have fol-
lowed you for a very long period of time.

There are a couple of thoughts that I have and I would like to
mention. I, too, am one who has been a little disappointed in the
nature by which we have discussed and argued the block grant
approach here in Congress, and, as to how it might apply to States
and the applicability of it once it arrives at the State level.

I come from 6 years of deep involvement in the State legislative
process. I happen to be reminded, in a positive sense, of what my
colleague, Mr. Ford, has said. It relates to court mandates, and
charges not only the Congress of this country but the separate
legislative bodies of the United States with the responsibility of
carrying on programs that serve the citizens of those States.

I think block granting can work. I think the initial purpose for it
is to lessen the burden at the Federal level, so that instead of
getting $1 or $3 in return for every $1 invested, that we might run
the risk and the opportunity of getting $4 for every $1.

That does not mean that the programs that we discuss here will
go in the trash can. It may well mean that the effectiveness by
which they are applied at the local level will reap greater benefits
for the recipients involved.

One of the problems that you so eloquently spoke of this morning
is our effort here, and the effort that all have been engaged in in
this body for a long time, to lessen the burden of the poor, the
handicapped, and the disabled. We have created a greater burden
for them by compounding the economic environment in which they
live to such a point that they can no longer afford to be there
unless we continue to add more and more to those programs.

If we are to arrive at a point of fiscal stability in this country, if
we can bring down that very disruptive tax of inflation, then I
think we have to lessen the burden that this Congress, by its
spending programs, places on the economy of this country.

Clearly, there are a variety of ways in doing it. The thing I find
unique as a freshman, when we have hard data, hard data that
tells you that adjustments in programs can result in cost saving
and greater efficiency. I speak primarily of the child nutrition
program and the school lunch program that I have delved into
deeply in the last couple of weeks. When a colleague of yours, or at
least a colleague from the State of New York, comes to us and he
administers the school lunch program in an excellent way, but is
unwilling to recognize that there are alternative approaches to
saving $400 million or $500 million or $600 million in a year, and
still provide the nutritious programs of breakfasts and lunches to
the children who need them, and that we cannot turn that kind of
program around to allow it to exist with greater cost savings-it is
that kind of rigidity I hope to be able to work against. I hope all of
us can work to accomplish that.

I am certainly going to be asking of you, with your obvious
insight and your close contact and relationship with these pro-
grams over the last many years, that you will work with us in



	  

270

providing and finding alternatives. I think none of us want to be
involved in putting people on the streets, and out of programs that
are serving them, as long as we know that those programs are
truly serving them.

Thank you for being with us this morning.
Mrs. CHISIOLM. Thank you.
Chairman PERKINS. Let me thank you very much, Mrs. Chis-

holm. Your testimony and your responses to our questions have
given us invaluable insights into the nature of the proposed cuts.

Now we will turn to another panel of witnesses. Our first
witness is Mrs. Wilson from Houston, Del. We will start with you.
And we will take you as your names are listed. The next witness
will be Mr. Pope, Mrs. Sanders, Mr. Moore, and Mrs. Ridley.

STATEMENTS 0)F ('lARiLIE MAE WILSON. il()USTON. )EL.;
ARTIIIR POPE. PAINTSVILIE. KY.: MARY SANDERS, LAW.
RENCE, 011I1: AARON MOORE. ANACOSTIA. WASHINGTON,
I).('.: AND KATIE Rll)lEY, ANACOSTIA. WASHINGTON, D.C.

STATEMENT 01F ('IIARLIE MAE WILSON, HOUSTON, )EL.
Ms. WILSON. My name is Charlie Mae Wilson. I was born in

Florida and I have been a migrant since 1949, up and down the
road for 30-some years. And I have seen a lot of houses in Dela-
ware since 1972. 1 have been here 9 years.

In 1967, I was doing piece work picking apples, 25 cents a bushel.
And as of last year, I was still getting 25 cents a bushel. I have a
daughter 16 years old. I get food stamps and medicaid. And during
the summer, they cut them real low, food stamps; and in winter,
they go higher on the light bill.

I got disabled in 1975 with bronchitis, arthritis, and high blood
pressure. I have been in and out of the hospital since 1975, some-
times, one and two times a year. I am on disability. I can't draw
social security due to when I worked, they didn't take it out. If
they took it out, they didn't turn it in, so I have no record of
drawing social security. I don't get any social security. I only get
disability, SSI.

For the last 3 years I have been getting fuel oil. I would like to
work, but I have arthritis in the kneecap and the spine and if I
could hold a job, I would be more than glad to hold a job. But I
often have this arthritis in the kneecap.

Even doing the farmwork, I have to stay home sometimes or I
can't get around on my leg. If I was to start working and give up
my assistance-I don't believe I could hold out working.

That is about all.
Chairman PERKINS. The next witness will be Mr. Arthur Pope.
I am delighted to welcome you. You have been a member of the

board for many years. I have always been interested in the elderly
and veterans. Go ahead and proceed with your statement.

STATEMENT 01F ARTHUR POPE. PAINTSVILlIE. KY.
Mr. POPE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I thank each and every

member of your committee for honoring me by allowing me to
appear before them.


